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Hamburg Township 
Public Safety Department 

PO BOX 157 ∙ HAMBURG, MICHIGAN 48139 
PHONE: (810) 231-9391 ∙ FAX: (810) 231-9401 

EMAIL: HATP@hamburg.mi.us 
RICHARD DUFFANY, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

TO:         Hamburg Township Board  

FROM:   Chief Richard Duffany 

DATE:    December 30, 2024 

RE:         Agenda Item Topic:  Purchase of Fire Apparatus  

     General Ledger #: 206-000.000-981.000 

     Number of Supporting Documents: 2 

NEW/OLD BUSINESS:   XXX   New Business 

 

Requested Action 

• Motion to approve the purchase of a 2025 Kenworth T880 Tandem Axel Chassis, 2-Door 
Commercial Cab, 3000-gallon tanker from the Sutphen Corporation through Apollo Fire 
Apparatus Sales and Service of Romeo, MI in a manner as determined by the Township 
Board. 
 

Background  

Hamburg Township Fire Tanker 11 went into service in 2000 and was refurbished in 2015. Tanker 
11 is scheduled in the department’s capital forecast to be replaced in 2027. Several months ago, I 
requested that Deputy Director Newton research options/proposals for replacing Tanker 11 with 
the intent of presenting a recommendation to the Township Board at the Budget Strategic Planning 
Meeting in April of 2025.  
 
Deputy Director Newton created a Tanker Apparatus Committee to seek out proposals for the 
purchase of a new tanker truck.  On the committee were Capt. Sam Vultaggio, Capt. Michael 
Steinaway, Lt. Jess Stewart and Lt. Jared Kaminski.  The committee developed specifications for 
the new tanker based on our current Tanker 11.  On December 11, 2024, Deputy Director Newton 
reported back to me with the committee’s recommendation (see attached memo). 
 
As outlined in Deputy Director Newton’s memo, the committee is recommending that the 
Township enter into a contract with the Sutphen Corporation, via Apollo Fire, to build the new 
Tanker 11 (2025 Kenworth T880 Tandem Axel Chassis, 2-Door Commercial Cab, 3000-gallon 
tanker) at a bid price of $847,337.61. 
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Deputy Director Newton also informed me that there were two variables in play that could affect 
the bid price. First, the sales representative from Sutphen Corp. advised Deputy Director Newton 
that the company is expecting a 3% - 6% increase in pricing starting January 1st and that the quoted 
price ($847,337.61) is only good until January 12, 2025 at which time it would be increased by 
3% - 6%. This increase in pricing would cost the Township an additional $25,000 to 50,000 to 
purchase the tanker. 
 
Secondly, Sutphen Corp. was offering the following payment options that could reduce the 
overall cost of the tanker: 
 

o #1: 25% pre-payment ($211,8348.40) discount of $16,946.75 
 Total price:  $830,390.86 

 
o #2: 50% pre-payment ($423,668.81) discount of $33,893.50 

 Total price:  $813,444.11 
 

o #3: 75% pre-payment ($635,503.21) discount of $50,840.26 
 Total price:  $796,497.35 

 
o #4: With a 100% pre-payment there is a discount of $67,787.01 

 Total price:  $779,550.60  
 
Due to the amount of this project and the various policy decisions involved (i.e., price bid deadline, 
cost increases/savings, payment options, possible RFP requirements, etc.), I requested that this 
purchase be placed on the Township Board workshops scheduled for December 17, 2024 and 
January 8, 2025 for discussion and direction from the Board on how to proceed.  
 
Budget Impact 

The specific budget impact of this purchase is dependent upon several factors as outlined in this 
memo. However, this capital purchase was contemplated when calculating the current Fire millage 
rate which was passed by the voters of Hamburg Township on August 6, 2024. 
  
 
Respectfully, 

 
Chief Richard Duffany 
Director of Public Safety 
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December 11, 2024 
 
Richard Duffany 
Director of public Safety 
 
RE: TANKER 11 PROPOSAL 
 
SUMMARY 
Several months ago, the fire division created a Tanker Apparatus Committee to seek out proposals for 
the purchase of a new tanker truck.  On the committee were Capt. Vultaggio, Capt. Steinaway, Lt. 
Stewart and Lt. Kaminski.  The committee developed a specification for the new tanker based on our 
current Tanker 11.  Per our Capital Improvement Forecast, Tanker 11 is slated to be replaced during the 
FY26/27 budget year.  1,000,000 is allocated for this purchase.   
 
PROPOSALS 
The committee looked at five manufacturers.  Rosenbauer, Spartan, Pierce, KME and Sutphen.   

• Rosenbauer was discussed at length because the last three apparatus purchased by this 
department were built by Rosenbauer and purchased through EV+ (Engine 1, Engine11 and 
Engine 12).  The committee eliminated Rosenbauer from consideration due the extensive quality 
control / maintenance issues we have had with all three of these vehicles.   

o All three required almost complete repainting while under warranty resulting in 
significant loss of service / duty time. 

o Rosenbauer has numerous proprietary parts. 
 i.e.: we’ve replaced multiple windshield wiper motors at a cost of $1,600 per 

motor.    We’ve spent almost $8,000 on wiper motors, not including the labor to 
replace them.   

o Our mechanic, Chris Jung, doesn’t recommend them.  He works all over the county and 
has extensive experience in fire apparatus and advised us that all of the agencies he 
works with have similar problems with Rosenbauer. 

• Spartan Fire Apparatus was given our specifications but declined to submit a proposal.  Spartan 
manufactured our current Tanker 12, and has been a reliable vehicle (we just retro-fitted this 
truck).  However, the vendor has been a difficult vendor to work with in the past.   

• The Pierce Manufacturing, Inc submitted a proposal via Halt Fire, Inc.  After reviewing their 
proposal, the committee eliminated them from consideration for the following reasons: 

o Their proposal did not meet our specifications – it was too tall. 
o Their estimate build estimate was 40-48 months from date of contract. 
o Pierce’s contract contained and annual price increase for each year that the vehicle was 

under construction. 
• KME Fire Apparatus submitted a proposal via Mallory Safety & Supply.  After reviewing their 

proposal, the committee eliminated them from consideration because they could not meet our 
specification requirements. 

o Not enough storage compartments. 
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o Location of the porta tank. 
o Build time in excess of 36-months. 

• Sutphen Corp. submitted a proposal via Apollo Fire, Shelby Twp, MI.  Sutphen is the only 
proposal that met the agencies specifications.   

o They also can provide the apparatus within a 25 to 27-month time frame from the time 
of contract.   

o Once their contract is approved, the price for the apparatus is locked in.   
o Sutphen is a participating member of the Sourcewell Purchasing Consortium, as is 

Hamburg Township.  This provides Hamburg Township with the lowest available pricing 
for the apparatus. 

o Our local mechanic Chris Jung strongly recommends Sutphen as the most reliable 
apparatus among the four manufacturers considered. 
 Sutphen utilizes non-proprietary parts and provides their customers with a 

complete NAPA equivalent part list for all of their apparatus sold.   
  
RECOMMENDATION 
After reviewing all of the proposals the committee recommends that the Hamburg Township Public 
Safety Department enter into a contract with the Sutphen Corp., via Apollo Fire, to build our next fire 
tanker.  The Sutphen Tanker meets all of our specifications, it is highly recommended by our mechanic, 
Chris Jung and it can be delivered in under 36-months.  
 
Apollo Fire Apparatus Sales and Service 
12584 Lakeshore Drive 
Romeo, MI 48065 
586-752-1800 

- 2025 Kenworth T880 Tandem Axel Chassis, 2-Door Commercial Cab, 3000-gallon tanker. 
o Bid Price: $847,337.61 

- Payment Options 
o #1: 25% pre-payment ($211,8348.40) discount of $16,946.75 

 Total price:  $830,390.86 
o #2: 50% pre-payment ($423,668.81) discount of $33,893.50 

 Total price:  $813,444.11 
o #3: 75% pre-payment ($635,503.21) discount of $50,840.26 

 Total price:  $796,497.35 
o #4: With a 100% pre-payment there is a discount of $67,787.01 

 Total price:  $779,550.60  
 
Respectfully 
 

 
Dep. Director Jeffrey Newton         
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